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About the Multiple Award Schedules Consolidation: 

The Multiple Award Schedules (MAS) Consolidation initiative is one of four cornerstone projects underpinning GSA’s Federal Marketplace Strategy to modernize and simplify the buying and selling experience for customers, suppliers and acquisition professionals.

GSA is modernizing federal acquisition by consolidating the existing 24 Schedules into one single Schedule for products, services, and solutions. This provides consistency in the program for all stakeholders, makes it easier for customers to find total solutions under one contract vehicle, ensures terms and conditions meet the needs of our customers, and eliminates duplicate contracts.

To learn more about MAS Consolidation, please watch the MAS Consolidation recorded webinar. Additional information can also be found on the GSA Interact MAS Group and www.GSA.gov/federalmarketplace. If you have an outstanding question that is not answered in one of these resources, please reach out to the Multiple Award Schedule Program Management Office (MAS PMO) at maspmo@gsa.gov. 

About these Frequently Asked Questions: 

GSA is publishing this document in response to questions submitted about the Large Category, Subcategory, and Special Item Number (SIN) RFI, which closed on July 17, 2019. Please subscribe to the MAS Interact page to receive the latest information about MAS Consolidation.



Large Categories and Subcategories 

1. How will the new category structure help industry? How will the new structure help customers?
MAS offerings will be organized into categories similar to the governmentwide category structure and will better align to North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) codes, thereby reducing duplication and confusion over the Special Item Numbers (SINs). This structure will organize offerings in a way that is easier to understand for customers who are familiar with both the NAICS and governmentwide category management. We’ve also updated SIN descriptions, making it easier for customers to do keyword searches of the categories. 

2. How are the current SIN specific terms and conditions and technical requirements going to be maintained under the new large categories/subcategories structure? 
Each SIN will maintain its distinct terms and conditions and technical requirements. As applicable, terms and conditions and technical requirements will also be mapped to a large category or subcategory.

3. Does GSA intend to add new large categories and subcategories after consolidation? 
GSA will add new large categories and subcategories when needed.

4. The IT large category overlaps with subcategories in other large categories (such as security systems, audio visual products, laboratory equipment, medical equipment, technical and engineering services, etc.). Should IT actually be a subcategory of Office Management?
The large categories are based on governmentwide categories. IT will remain a large category.

5. What’s the difference between the IT Services and IT Solutions subcategories?
The IT Services subcategory is just for services and the IT Solutions subcategory is for solutions that include both products and services.

6. Why is IT Training a separate subcategory from the Training subcategory in the Professional Services large category?
IT Training has a distinctive NAICS code and is a separate SIN from Professional Services Training.

7. What is the intent of the Miscellaneous large category? Will every contractor be awarded a Miscellaneous large category?
No, the Miscellaneous large category only covers the items in the corresponding subcategories and SINs. 

SINs and NAICS Codes

8. Are SINs absolutely necessary or can an approach that only uses NAICS codes be adopted?
In the new structure, GSA will be organizing offerings by large category, subcategory, and SIN. Each SIN will be aligned to a 6-digit NAICS code. At this time, SINs are necessary to support the organization of the consolidated Schedule and cannot be replaced by only using NAICS.

9. Why aren’t the new SINs exactly the same as the NAICS codes?
During the review of all current SINs, GSA worked to map SINs closely to the NAICS codes. In many cases, the SIN and NAICS code are one in the same. In other cases, the NAICS code had to be modified to reach the final SIN. This may have been due to several circumstances, including the NAICS code being mapped to more than one SIN.

10. What is the meaning behind the characters behind each new SIN number? For example, what does GSA mean by 54151S, 54151HEAL, 54154HACS?
In the new structure the SINs are based on the NAICS codes. Since several SINs use the same NAICS codes, we added alpha characters to differentiate the SINs. 

11. There are multiple SINs from the same and different legacy Schedules being mapped to the same new SIN and the NAICS codes do not have alpha differentiators. How will the work scopes be differentiated?
Legacy SINs that are mapped to the same new SIN without any alpha differentiators are being consolidated to a single scope. 

12. What methodology was used when selecting NAICS codes?
GSA tried to select NAICS codes that best fit the SIN. As GSA does not control their creation, there will always be NAICS codes that do not exactly match to SINs. However, through this consolidation there should be no loss in coverage at the SIN level. 

13. How did GSA handle multiple NAICS codes when creating the new SINs?
When there were multiple NAICS codes for a SIN, GSA ensured that all of the NAICS had the same size standard. 

14. In the new large category, subcategory, and SIN structure, will SINs fall into multiple large categories?
No, our goal is to ensure that the same products and services fall under only one large category, subcategory, and SIN at a time.

15. After SINs are consolidated, will a contractor be able to offer discounts by product line? 
Yes, these changes will not impact a contractor’s ability to offer discounts at the product line level.
 
16. Some SINs are being aligned to new NAICS codes that are not currently listed in the legacy solicitation for each SIN. Will this restrict current orders due to the NAICS code changes? Will it impact options on current task orders if the NAICS codes change? 
There should be no impact to current orders or options. Previously awarded orders will maintain the NAICS code assigned at the time of award for the order.

17. Are there going to be impacts to contracts like AMCOM EXPRESS, which actively uses SINs for task order Requests for Quote (RFQ)? 
No. Customers using SINs for their RFQs will use the new SINs once available and will be provided a matrix to crosswalk any legacy SINs to the new SINs. 

18. Are SINs still separate, even though many SINs could fall into the same Subcategory? 
Yes, there are still separate SINs even though multiple SINs can fall under the same subcategory.

19. How is GSA handling NAICS code exceptions? Example: NAICS 541330 Military and Aerospace Equipment and Military Weapons exception which has a $38.5M size standard. 
GSA is taking into account all NAICS code exceptions. 

20. Will GSA allow Schedule contractors to have identical products under multiple SINs?
No. 

21. Does GSA plan to delete SINs with low sales?
GSA will continuously seek to improve the overall structure of the MAS Program based on a number of factors, including customer demand for products and services.

22. We noticed that SIN 722 08, Ancillary Supplies and Services (SBSA), which is currently set aside for small business, is being consolidated with other Ancillary SINs that are not small business set asides. Why?
In reviewing this SIN, GSA determined that there is no value to small business to have a set aside ancillary SIN, as these are only awarded in conjunction with Schedule items.
 
23. Why do Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Services and Earth Observation Solutions (EOS) have the same SIN under separate large categories (Professional Services and Information Technology)? 
As a result of RFI feedback, GSA decided to map these services to two separate SINs:  541370GEO for Earth Observation Solutions, and 541370GIS for Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Services.

Maximum Order Threshold

24. What is the significance of the Maximum Order Threshold (MOT)?
Under the MAS program, the maximum order is set by Special Item Number (SIN) as the threshold at which a contractor should: (a) not be obligated to honor the order(s) given the volume/dollar value, and (b) expect to give additional price reductions (see 552.238-81) given the nature of the items included under a particular SIN. This MOT also plays a part in price reductions clause compliance, as contractors are allowed to give discounts on orders that exceed the MOT to their Most Favorite Customer(MFC)/Basis of Award (BOA) Customer. 

See clause 52.216-19 ORDER LIMITATIONS for more information. 

25. Can a contractor have orders that exceed the MOT?
Yes, the maximum order threshold does not prevent contractors from having orders that exceed the MOT. A maximum order threshold of $250,000 does not mean that a contractor cannot have an order that exceeds $250,000.

26. What is the impact of MOT changes on previously disclosed commercial sales practices? Can discounts based on the MOT be renegotiated?
There is no impact to previously disclosed commercial sales practices until they are renegotiated and a modification is awarded to change applicable commercial sales practices. Contractors can renegotiate their discounts at any time with sufficient justification.

27. Many MOTs increased through this effort. How did GSA determine the MOT? 
When SINs were consolidated to create the new SINs, GSA reviewed MOTs on the existing SINs and took the lowest. If the MOT was less than the current Simplified Acquisition Threshold (SAT) of $250,000 per GSA Class Deviation 2018-01, GSA moved the MOT to the SAT.

General Questions

28. What are the implications of the new size standards on overall contract business size?
Contractors will still have their overall size standard determined by preponderance of work NAICS codes.

29. What will the impact be to Labor Categories?
MAS Consolidation will have no effect on the process for awarding and administering labor categories.

30. On the RFI, it appears that Cooperative Purchasing is being expanded to items that were previously on legacy Schedules 00CORP, 56 and 66 Schedule SINs that are now being consolidated with legacy Cooperative Purchasing SINs. Is Cooperative Purchasing in fact being expanded?
No. As outlined in the applicable regulations, Cooperative Purchasing is not being expanded at this time and will only apply to the categories for which it applies today. Cooperative Purchasing products, services, and contractors will be identified at the product and service level, as described in the Cooperative Purchasing regulations. Applicability in the Schedule will be noted by SIN. 

31. How will proposed changes to the SINs be communicated to customers?
All stakeholders, including customers, are receiving ongoing communications about MAS Consolidation, including the proposed changes to the SINs. These include a Customer Fact Sheet that answers questions sent to us about the upcoming changes related to MAS Consolidation. GSA’s Office of Customer Accounts and Stakeholder Engagement (CASE) is actively educating customers about MAS Consolidation through regularly scheduled meetings and trainings. 

32. Will all of a contractor’s current awarded products, services and/or solutions fall are mapped to a new SIN for which they are qualified? 
Yes, a contractor’s currently awarded SINs will fall under a new SIN for which they are qualified.

33. Does GSA plan to modify the current process that allows each contract holder to establish their minimum order? Will the Mass Mod in January 2020 delete minimum order quantity?
No, minimum order quantities will continue to be negotiable. MAS Consolidation will have no effect on the process for establishing minimum order quantity. 

34. As a contractor, I’ve noticed contracting officers using SINs and NAICS codes as a guide for contracting modifications. In some cases, it seems the code label was more important than the product itself in determining mandatory FAR clauses. Are NAICS codes administrative tools and or legally binding to determine the mandatory FAR clauses? 
GSA considered all relevant information when determining which clauses and provisions should be included in the solicitation. At the order level, the ordering activity may add additional terms and conditions to an order if they do not conflict with the Schedule contract terms and conditions based on all relevant information specific to the requirement.

35. Are AbilityOne priority purchase requirements and removal of Essentially The Same (ETS) items to AbilityOne going to be required under the new consolidated Schedule?
MAS consolidation will have no effect on AbilityOne requirements, including those related to Essentially The Same (ETS) items.

36. How will the AbilityOne program requirements be impacted by MAS Consolidation?
MAS Consolidation will have no effect on any AbilityOne requirements.
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